

# COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT

BETWEEN

## BUCHANAN COMMUNITY SCHOOLS

AND

BUCHANAN-5C EDUCATION ASSOCIATION/MEA/NEA

2021 - 2024

### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

ARTICLE 1. SCOPE OF PERSONNEL COVERED	2
ARTICLE 2. MANAGEMENT RIGHTS	2
ARTICLE 3. ASSOCIATION RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES	3
ARTICLE 4. PROFESSIONAL COMPENSATION	4
ARTICLE 5. TEACHING HOURS	4
ARTICLE 6. TEACHING LOADS, ASSIGNMENTS, AND PLANNING TIME	5
ARTICLE 7. TEACHING CONDITIONS	6
ARTICLE 8. LEAVES OF ABSENCE	6
ARTICLE 9. PROTECTION OF TEACHERS	10
ARTICLE 10. GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE	11
ARTICLE 11. STUDENT TEACHERS	14
ARTICLE 12. DIVISIONAL CHAIRPERSON	
ARTICLE 13. MENTORS	15
ARTICLE 14. SITE-BASED DECISION MAKING	
ARTICLE 15. ACADEMIC FREEDOM	16
ARTICLE 16. PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT EDUCATIONAL LEAVE	16
ARTICLE 17. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS	17
ARTICLE 18. INSURANCE PROTECTION	18
ARTICLE 19. SALARY SCHEDULE CREDIT	20
SCHEDULE A SALARIES	20
SCHEDULE B CALENDARS	24
ARTICLE 20. SEVERABILITY/EMERGENCY FINANCIAL MANAGER	30
ARTICLE 21. DURATION OF AGREEMENT	30
SCHEDULE C EXTRACURRICULAR	31
SCHEDULE D UNUSED SICK DAYS	33

## Agreement

This Agreement entered on June 28, 2021, by and between the Board of Education of the Buchanan Community Schools, Buchanan, Michigan, ("the Board"), and the Buchanan-5C Education Association/M.E.A./N.E.A., ("the Association").

The Board of Education has a statutory obligation pursuant to the Michigan Public Employment Relations Act, MCL 423.201, *et seq.* to negotiate with the Association as to wages, hours, and other terms and conditions of employment for the bargaining unit specified in Article 1.Through good-faith negotiations, the parties have reached an understanding about the successor Agreement to their collective bargaining agreement which expires on June 30, 2021 and, accordingly, execute this successor Agreement, effective July 1, 2021 and expiring June 30, 2024.

BUCHANAN-5C EDUCATION ASSOCIATION, M.E.A./N.E.A.

BUCHANAN COMMUNITY SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION

Date

#### ARTICLE 1. SCOPE OF PERSONNEL COVERED

A. The Board recognizes the Association as the sole and exclusive collective bargaining representative for all full-time and regularly employed part-time classroom teachers, whether certified or non-certified, including guidance counselors, librarians, literacy coaches, social workers, mental health liaison, excluding therefrom all supervisory, administrative and executive personnel, including, but not limited to, superintendent, assistant superintendents, principals, assistant principals, office and clerical employees, transportation, maintenance and custodial employees, the athletic director, all substitute teachers not permanently employed as hereinafter defined, and all other employees not specifically included as a part of the bargaining unit above-mentioned.

A permanent substitute shall be defined as a substitute who has been employed by the District with an assignment to one specific teaching position, on a full-time basis, for a period of over sixty (60) days of service in that assignment. For the duration of that assignment and in accordance with Section 1236 of the Michigan School Code (MCL 380.1236), said teacher(s) shall be entitled to the wages and benefits of beginning (new) teachers, shall earn paid sick leave at the rate of one (1) day per month, and personal business days at the rate of one (1) day per semester, and shall be entitled to unpaid leaves of absence, but shall not be entitled to be recalled once services are terminated (except as required by law). Moreover, said teacher shall not accrue seniority or experience credit for time as a permanent substitute, unless the teacher is hired into a regular teaching position without interruption of service.

- **B.** The term "teacher" when used in this Agreement shall refer to all professional employees represented by the Association in the bargaining unit defined in Section A above.
- C. The Board, to the extent it may lawfully do so, agrees not to negotiate with any teachers' organization other than the Association for the duration of this Agreement.

#### ARTICLE 2. MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

- A. The Board, on its own behalf and on behalf of the electors of the school District, hereby retains and reserves unto itself, without limitation, all powers, rights, authority, duties and responsibilities conferred upon and invested in it by the laws and the Constitution of the State of Michigan and of the United States, including, but without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the right:
  - 1. To the executive management and administrative control of the school system and its properties and facilities and the activities of its employees;
  - 2. To hire all teachers and, subject to the provisions of law, to determine their qualifications and the conditions for their continued employment or their dismissal or demotion; and to assign, promote, and transfer all such teachers;

- **3.** To establish grades and courses of instruction, including special programs, and to provide for athletic, recreational, and social events for students, all as deemed necessary or advisable by the Board.
- 4. To decide upon the means and methods of instruction, the selection of textbooks and other teaching materials, and the use of teaching aids of every kind and nature;
- **5.** To determine class schedules and, except as otherwise herein agreed, the hours of instruction and the duties of teachers with respect thereto and the terms and conditions of employment.

The exercise of the foregoing powers, rights, authority, duties and responsibilities by the Board, the adoption of policies, rules, regulations, and practices in furtherance thereof and the use of judgment and discretion in connection therewith shall be limited only by the specific and express terms of this Agreement.

#### ARTICLE 3. ASSOCIATION RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES

- A. The Association shall have the right to use school building space when not otherwise in use in the same manner as the public during reasonable hours for meetings upon request for the use of such space in accordance with the established regulations of the Board of Education. If special custodial service is required, the Association agrees to reimburse the Board of Education for all costs incurred. Any Association representative may transact official Association business upon school property provided the same shall not interfere with a teacher's professional responsibilities. Association representatives who are not employed by the Board shall report to the building principal's office prior to the transaction of such business.
- **B.** The Association shall have the right to use school facilities and equipment, including telephones, typewriters, duplicating machines, calculating machines, and all types of audio-visual equipment at reasonable times when such equipment is not otherwise in use, so long as the use does not violate the law and is for the benefit of the entire bargaining unit. The Association agrees that the use of school facilities and equipment shall be limited to qualified operators and in accordance with established regulations. The Association shall pay for the cost of all materials and supplies incident to such use.
- C. (1) The Association shall have the right to post notices of its activities and matters on Association bulletin boards, at least one of which shall be provided in each staff lounge or designated location in each school building, so long as the use does not violate the law and is for the benefit of the entire bargaining unit.
  - (2) The Association may use the school internal mail services and teacher mailboxes for communications to teachers in accordance with established regulation, so long as the use does not violate the law and is for the benefit of the entire bargaining unit.

**D.** The Board recognizes the right of the Association to make reasonable written requests for certain Board information which will aid the Association in developing intelligent, accurate, informed, and constructive proposals on behalf of the teachers or which will aid the Association in processing any grievance or complaint. The Board agrees to furnish the Association in response to reasonable requests, published information available to the public.

## ARTICLE 4. PROFESSIONAL COMPENSATION

- **A**. The salaries of employees covered by this Agreement are set forth in Schedule A which is attached to and incorporated in this Agreement. Such salary schedules shall remain in effect during the term of this Agreement.
- **B.** (1) The salary schedule is based upon a normal weekly teaching load during normal teaching hours, as hereinafter defined. Individual teacher contracts shall call for up to one hundred eighty-six (186) teacher work days between the beginning of school and the final day of school, as set forth in the attached calendar.
  - (2) In the event the law is changed to provide for the completion of more than one hundred eighty- six (186) full days of school, than Paragraph B of Article 6 may be reopened at the request of either party for the purpose of negotiating appropriate language to cover the changed situation to the end that neither party to this Agreement be penalized by such change in the law and that the provisions of this Paragraph B shall not be in conflict with the law then in effect.

#### ARTICLE 5. <u>TEACHING HOURS</u>

A. The normal working day for teachers shall not exceed seven (7) hours and thirty-five (35) minutes consecutively, including lunch period. All teachers shall be at their place of duty, assigned by the principal, no later than ten (10) minutes prior to the time the students' class day begins. Place of duty shall be flexible depending on need and will be rotated among the staff when feasible. Teachers shall remain at their place of duty, assigned by the principal ten (10) minutes after the students' class day ends.

The normal student day shall be as follows:

- <u>Moccasin</u>: 8:50am to 3:45pm
- <u>Ottawa</u>: 8:45am 3:40pm
- <u>Middle School</u>: 7:30am 2:25pm
- <u>High School</u>: 7:40am 2:40pm

As determined by the Board's sole discretion, the above student school days start and end times may be adjusted to meet any changes in state requirements and/or for transportation schedules.

- **B.** All teachers shall be entitled to a duty-free lunch period of not less than twenty-five (25) minutes except those who have agreed to noon period supervision for such remuneration as the Board may agree individually with them to pay but no less than the minimum wage hourly rate (pro-rata) established by Michigan law. It is recognized that emergencies might occur that would necessitate the assigning of additional duties to teachers by the building principal. Such assignments will be compensated at the established rate.
- C. A teacher engaged during school hours in negotiating on behalf of the Association with any representative of the Board or participating in any grievance negotiation concerning professional personnel shall be released from regular duties without loss of salary; provided, however that it is understood and agreed by the parties that all such activities shall be restricted to after-school hours except upon mutual agreement from time to time between the Board's administrative representative and the Association. The Association shall reimburse the District on a current basis those sums paid to the Office of Retirement Services for Association release time.
- **D.** Teachers may be released from regular duties without loss of salary for up to four (4) days, or the equivalent thereof, out of the specified number of contracted calendar days for planned District sponsored professional development days.

## ARTICLE 6. <u>TEACHING LOADS, ASSIGNMENTS, AND PLANNING TIME</u>

- A. The normal weekly teaching load in all grades K-12 shall include at least two hundred fifty (250) minutes for teacher planning time; provided, however, the established schedules and the minimum planning time are subject to change or revision if deemed necessary by the Board after consultation with the Association. It is understood that from time to time teachers will be required to supervise students during recess periods on days when students remain in the building during such periods.
- **B.** The teachers recognize their responsibility to give reasonable support and assistance to the Administration with student supervision and control. Teachers shall assume an active supervisory role not only in their respective classrooms, but before and after school, hall monitoring, recess, and various other times during the school day.
- C. The Administration reserves the right to call a meeting of the staff either prior to the scheduled starting time or lasting later than the scheduled closing time as is necessary for the smooth and efficient operation of the school. However, no teacher shall be required to attend more than two (2) staff, committee, and/or school-sponsored events where teacher attendance is mandated, required or expected, nor be required to stay longer than a total of 160 minutes in total per week.

## ARTICLE 7. TEACHING CONDITIONS

- A. Class size has been reduced to the extent that the Board deemed consistent with its legal obligations, its financial ability, and the practicality thereof. It is the intent of the Board to eliminate what it considers oversized classes whenever and wherever, in its opinion, it may properly do so. The Board believes the problem of class size involves flexibility to meet different or changing situations both in the classroom and confronting the Board and requires continuing study as to what can and should be done from time to time to afford the best solution.
  - As an aid to such study, a committee of six (6) persons may make periodic advisory recommendations to the Board regarding possible or desirable changes in the size of any particular class or classes. The Association shall designate from its membership three (3) members for such Committee. The Superintendent shall designate three (3) supervisory personnel as members of the Committee.
  - (2) Either party to this Agreement may request this committee to convene up to two (2) times each calendar year. Thus, said committee may be convened up to four (4) times each calendar year. Said committee shall be convened within ten (10) week days after a request has been made to discuss the school year's anticipated class loads. Requests shall be made in writing to either the Superintendent or the designated representative of the Association.

## ARTICLE 8. LEAVES OF ABSENCE

#### A. <u>Paid Leaves of Absence</u>

- 1. <u>Sick Leave</u>: Each full-time teacher regularly employed by the Board shall be credited with a total of ten (10) sick leave days each school year. Part-time teachers shall accumulate and be paid sick leave on a pro rata basis. Sick leave shall be governed by the following conditions:
  - **a.** Sick leave shall be allowed to accumulate for both full-time and part-time teachers. After October 1st of each school year, the Administration shall provide each teacher with a statement specifying the total amount of accumulated sick leave upon request.
  - **b.** Sick leave days, up to the teacher's maximum accumulation, may be used for the illness, injury, temporary disability (including disability due to pregnancy) or unavoidable quarantine of the teacher. When feasible, teachers shall schedule routine health examinations and/or routine dental examinations outside regular school hours.
  - **c.** A maximum of three (3) days per occurrence deductible from sick leave may be used for serious illness in the immediate family. In addition, teachers may

use up to two (2) days from accumulated sick leave to attend funerals or other memorial services. **d.** The Board, at its discretion, may grant special use of sick leave in excess of the leaves provided in subsection b. above per occurrence when requested in writing by the teacher. The Board agrees to resolve each such request at the first meeting after receipt of such.

- e. Payment of sick leave shall be prorated with other benefits.
- **f.** A teacher who has exhausted his/her sick leave and cannot return to work may apply for an unpaid leave of absence or an extension of sick leave, which shall be at the Board's discretion.
- **g**. A teacher who is absent on sick leave, or who requests return to work from sick leave, or who has exhausted all accumulated sick leave, or whose fitness to perform his/her duties may be impaired by illness, may be required to submit to a physical or mental examination by a physician of the Board's choosing at Board expense, or may be required to submit a physician's statement verifying the teacher's illness or the teacher's fitness to resume or perform his/her duties.
- 2. <u>Paid Leaves of Absence Not Chargeable to Sick Leave</u>: In order to be eligible for the following leaves of absence with pay not chargeable to sick leave, the teacher must give written notice to the Superintendent at least seven (7) days prior to taking said leave, (or within seventy-two (72) hours for personal business leaves) except where waived in writing because of emergency; and, upon said notice, the teacher may qualify as hereinafter specified.
  - a. <u>Personal Business Days</u>: Two (2) days per year may be used for purposes of personal business which cannot be transacted outside of the regular school day, or when arrangements cannot be made to avoid its use. The personal business day may not be taken on days preceding or succeeding a vacation or holidays without specific prior approval by the building principal. In order to be eligible for personal business leave, the teacher must file his/her request with the building principal at least seventy-two (72) hours before taking said leave and obtain the approval of the building principal. Notification may be waived in cases of emergency by the building principal. Building principals may deny such requests where a staffing problem exists. Such leaves shall not be accumulative. Unused personal business days each year shall be added to the teacher's sick leave accumulative at the end of the school year.
  - **b.** <u>Professional Leave</u>: Upon prior approval of the Superintendent, individual teachers may be granted leave of absence to attend educational conferences, workshops, and visitations pertinent to the improvement of the school curriculum or teaching effectiveness. Necessary expenses for such meetings will be paid by the Board upon submission of the proper vouchers when a faculty member is officially designated by the school administration to attend a meeting or convention sponsored by an educational or professional organization.

- c. <u>Short Term Leave</u>: The Board reserves the right to grant other short term leaves in its discretion with or without pay or drawn from sick leave or personal business leave upon written application by the teacher involved.
- **d.** <u>Association Leave</u>: The Board recognizes the Association and its officers as the delegated representatives of the faculty and agrees that there are professional obligations inherent to the Association which is of mutual concern and benefit. Upon request of the Association President, with the consent of the Superintendent, leave for professional action shall be granted.
- e. <u>Jury Duty</u>: The Board will grant jury duty leave with pay. In such event, the teacher shall remit all compensation (minus any expense reimbursements) received for jury duty for days so released. Leave for jury duty is for that function only and when not required by the Court to be present, the teacher shall report to school for work.
- f. <u>Missed DPPD Content</u>: A teacher who misses a District-Provided Professional Development (DPPD) session due to absence, appointment, or coaching/extra-curricular responsibility must meet with the building principal to ensure that the teacher complies with DPPD hours and is informed of missed content.
- 8. <u>Bereavement</u>: A teacher shall be entitled to receive five (5) paid days of bereavement leave for absence due to the death of a parent, child, or spouse, or these same relatives by marriage. Each teacher shall be entitled to receive two (2) paid days of bereavement leave for absence due to the death of a sibling, grandparent, grandchild, or person with whom one has had an association equivalent to family ties. Bereavement leave may be used at the time of death, when memorial services are held, or for settlement of the estate and need not be taken on consecutive days.

#### B. <u>Unpaid Leaves</u>

- 1. <u>Duration and Re-Employment</u>: Except as required by uniformed services leave subject to the provisions of the Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Act, no unpaid leave of absence shall extend beyond two (2) semesters except by mutual written agreement between the teacher, Association and the Board. Whenever feasible, unpaid leaves shall begin and end at natural school breaks, such as the beginning of the school year, semesters, or marking periods. A teacher returning from an unpaid leave will be returned to the same place on the salary schedule, for the bargaining unit position assigned, and for which the teacher is certified and qualified to teach providing that the teacher is not subject to a reduction in force.
- 2. <u>Conditions of Unpaid Leave</u>: A teacher on an unpaid leave shall not accrue seniority, experience credit or sick leave accumulation, unless otherwise agreed upon by the Board prior to the commencement of the leave. Teachers on unpaid leaves (except for

authorized family and medical leave) shall not receive Board paid insurance benefits, but may continue such benefits at their option and expense.

- a. <u>Child Care Leave</u>: A leave of absence shall be granted for the purpose of caring for a child, where the teacher is the primary care giver.
- **b.** <u>Uniformed Services Leave</u>: Uniformed services leave shall be granted under the terms and conditions required by the Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Act.
- **c.** <u>Extended Personal Leave</u>: A teacher who has exhausted sick leave and is unable to return to work may be granted an extended personal leave as provided for in Section 1(f) above.
- **d.** <u>Family and Medical Leave</u>: A teacher who has worked for the District for at least 1250 hours during the preceding twelve (12) months shall be granted up to twelve (12) weeks of unpaid leave during any fiscal year under the terms and conditions established by the Family and Medical Leave Act, with health care coverage provided by the Board pursuant to the Family and Medical Leave Act, if requested by the employee, for one or more of the following reasons:
  - Birth of the teacher's son or daughter or care for a son or daughter;
  - A child's placement with the teacher for adoption or foster care;
  - To care for a spouse, son or daughter, or parent (but not parent-in-law) who has a serious health condition;
  - The teacher's own serious health condition; or
  - Other reasons specified by the Act.

Any family and medical leave shall be subject to the following conditions:

- i. The teacher shall be required to substitute and exhaust any sick leave he/she may have accrued prior to placement on unpaid family and medical leave.
- **ii.** If a teacher begins a leave under this section more than five (5) weeks before the end of a semester, the Board may require the leave to be taken until the conclusion of the semester if the leave is to last at least three (3) weeks and the teacher would otherwise return to work during the three (3) week period immediately before the conclusion of the semester.
- **iii.** Upon return from leave, the employee shall be assigned to either the same position from which the leave was taken, or to a comparable position for which the teacher is certified and qualified. Restoration may be denied in the event of a reduction of staff.
- iv. If the teacher fails to return from leave at its expiration (except in the event of the continuance, onset or recurrence of a serious health condition of the teacher or other circumstances beyond the teacher's control), the Board shall

have the right to recover all health care premium payments made during the unpaid leave interval. These amounts may be deducted from any wage or other payments due the teacher, with any deficiency to be remitted by the teacher to the Board within five (5) days of demand.

v. <u>Teacher Absence</u>: When a teacher is absent on a leave of absence, normal procedure will be to hire a substitute for that teacher for the duration of the leave. The Association will be notified of any exceptions to this procedure.

## ARTICLE 9. <u>PROTECTION OF TEACHERS</u>

- **A.** The Board recognizes its responsibility to give reasonable support and assistance to teachers with respect to the maintenance of control and discipline in the classroom, before and after school, hall monitoring, recess, and various other times during the school day.
- **B.** Teachers shall comply with the provisions of current teaching procedures established by the Board in dealing with the student discipline.
- **C.** Any case of assault upon a teacher by a student or otherwise while at school or en route to or from such work or otherwise directly connected with school work shall be promptly reported to the building principal and police.

The Board's administrative and supervisory personnel shall cooperate fully with the law enforcement authorities in connection with the latter's investigation and prosecution of any such offense. In the event court attendance is required of the teacher in connection with the prosecution of any such offense, the teacher shall suffer no loss of pay for the absence for such court attendance. The Board shall also reimburse the teacher up to but not exceeding five hundred dollars (\$500.00) for legal fees actually incurred by the teacher in obtaining a legal opinion as to his/her rights and obligations as a result of such assault, provided the teacher is not otherwise eligible for representation through the Association.

- **D.** In the event a teacher's necessary and appropriate clothing (excluding watches, jewelry and eye glasses) is damaged in the course of enforcing student discipline in accordance with District policy, the teacher may apply for reimbursement from the District. The District may reimburse the teacher for such damage up to \$75.00 total per incident.
- E. Teachers shall have, upon reasonable request, the right to review the contents of their personnel files in accordance with the Bullard-Plawecki Employee Right to Know Act and to have a representative of the Association accompany them in such review. Other examination shall be limited to authorized supervisory and office personnel, except that a non-bargaining unit member Association representative or Board members and/or their attorneys may review such files if they are relevant to specific contract administration issues, or administrative or legal proceedings.

A written rebuttal may be attached to any material placed in the file, subject to the limitations of the Bullard-Plawecki Employee Right to Know Act.

If a bargaining unit member believes that material is inappropriate or in error, he/she may request that the material be expunged or corrected and the District, at its sole discretion, may grant such a request.

**F.** School related health services: when delivery of health services is necessary to maintain a student in a classroom, such services shall be performed by a trained paraprofessional or other qualified personnel other than a classroom teacher except in a life-threatening emergency. Classroom teachers will be informed of the person(s) responsible for the delivery of health services.

## ARTICLE 10. GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

- A. A grievance shall be alleged violation of the expressed terms of this contract in interpretation or application. It is expressly understood that the grievance procedure shall not apply to those areas in which the Tenure Act prescribes a procedure or authorizes a remedy (discharge and/or demotion). It is further understood that the grievance procedure will not apply to matters involving: the termination or failure to re-employ a probationary teacher; any matter for which there is recourse under Federal or State statute; any matter which this Agreement has excluded from the grievance procedure, including a teacher's appointment or re-appointment to serve in an extra-duty position identified in Schedule C; or any matter which is a prohibited subject of bargaining under Section 15 of the Public Employment Relations Act, MCL 423.215.
- **B.** The Association shall designate two (2) representatives per building to handle grievances when requested by the grievant. The Board designates the principal of each building to act as its representative at Level One and the Superintendent or his/her designated representative to act at Level Two.
- C. The term "days" shall mean days in which school is in session or double the days specified during summer months when school is not in session. The time limits provided herein may be extended by written mutual agreement.
- **D.** A written grievance shall:
  - 1. Be signed by the grievant or grievants;
  - 2. Contain a synopsis of the facts giving rise to the alleged violation;
  - 3. Cite the section or subsections of this Agreement alleged to have been violated;
  - 4. Contain the approximate date of the alleged violation; and
  - **5.** Specify the relief requested.

Any written grievance not substantially in accordance with the above requirements may be rejected as improper. Such a rejection shall not extend the limitations set forth beyond five (5) additional days.

#### E. Level One

A teacher believing to have been wronged by an alleged violation of the express provisions of this Agreement shall within six (6) days of knowledge of its alleged occurrence orally discuss the grievance with the building principal in an attempt to resolve same. An Association representative may be present upon request of the grievant. If no resolution is obtained within five (5) days of the discussion, the teacher shall within three (3) more days reduce the grievance to writing for the principal's disposition. If no decision is rendered within five (5) days after the written grievance is filed, or if the decision is unsatisfactory to the grievant, the grievant shall within five (5) more days or within five (5) days of the principal's written disposition, whichever is earlier, appeal same to Level Two.

#### Level Two

A copy of the written grievance shall be filed with the Superintendent or his/her designated agent as specified in Level One with the endorsement thereon of the approval or disapproval of the Association. Within ten (10) days of receipt of the grievance, the Superintendent or his/her designated agent shall meet with the grievant and/or the designated Association representative at the option of the grievant to discuss the grievance. Within ten (10) days of the discussion, the Superintendent or his/her designated agent shall render his/her designated agent shall render his/her decision in writing, transmitting a copy of the same to the grievant, the Association Secretary, the building principal in which the grievance arose, and place a copy of same in a permanent file in the Superintendent's office.

#### Level Three

If no decision is rendered within ten (10) days of the discussion, or the decision is unsatisfactory to the grievant, the Association may within ten (10) days request the assistance of a State Mediator for purposes of reaching a mutually acceptable settlement. The Mediation meeting shall be attended by designated representative(s) of the Board and representative(s) of the Association.

#### Level Four

If, however, no decision is rendered in Level Three, or if the decision is unsatisfactory to the Association, the Association may appeal to the Board by filing a written grievance along with the decision of the Mediator with the officer of the Board in charge of drawing up the agenda for the Board's meeting within five (5) days of the Mediator's session.

Upon proper application as specified in Level Three, the Board shall allow the teacher or his/her Association representative an opportunity to be heard at the meeting for which the grievance was scheduled. Said meeting shall be scheduled to be held within twenty (20) days of the date of the appeal from Level Two. Within twenty (20) days from the hearing of the grievance, the Board shall render its decision in writing. The Board may hold future hearings therein, may designate one or more of its members to hold future hearings therein or otherwise investigate the grievance provided; however, that in no event except with express written consent of the Association shall final determination of the grievance be made by the Board more than twenty (20) days after the initial hearing. A copy of the written decision of the Board shall be forwarded to the Superintendent for permanent filing, the building principal for the building in which the grievance arose, the grievant, and the secretary of the Association.

#### Level Five

Within twenty (20) days following the Board's response, the grievance may be submitted to binding arbitration. Individual members shall not have the right to submit grievances to arbitration; such right is vested solely with the Association. The selection of an arbitrator and the procedures governing arbitration shall be in accordance with the rules and procedures of the American Arbitration Association. All costs of arbitration shall be borne by the party whose case does not prevail.

- 1. At arbitration, the grievant may not raise any new allegation or rely on any evidence not previously disclosed in the grievance process.
- 2. The arbitrator shall have no authority to issue a decision on the merits of a prohibited or illegal bargaining subject.
- 3. The arbitrator shall have no authority to consider any claim for which there is another remedial procedure or forum established by law or regulation.
- 4. If the arbitrability of any grievance is disputed, the arbitrator shall have no jurisdiction to render a decision on the merits until he/she has first made a ruling on the arbitrability issue. By stipulation of the parties of the grievance, the arbitrator may concurrently hear both the jurisdictional issues and the merits of that dispute in the same proceeding. If the arbitrator determines that he/she is without jurisdiction to rule, the matter shall be dismissed without decision on the merits.
- 5. The arbitrator shall have no authority to order retroactive back-pay beyond the grievance date and shall deduct from such back-pay an amount equal to any

compensation the grievant may have received from other sources during the applicable time period.

- 6. Notwithstanding any other provision in this Agreement, the Employer shall have no obligation to arbitrate any grievance after the expiration of this Agreement. The Employer, however, shall arbitrate grievances arising during the term of this Agreement for which a timely grievance was filed before the Agreement's expiration.
- 7. The arbitration proceedings will be conducted pursuant to the Michigan Uniform Arbitration Act, MCL 691.1681 et seq.
- **F.** Should a teacher fail to institute or appeal a decision within the time limits specified, or voluntarily leaves the employ of the Board, all further proceedings on a previously instituted grievance (except a claim involving a remedy directly benefiting the grievant regardless of his employment) shall be barred.
- **G.** The Association shall have no right to initiate the grievance involving the right of a teacher or group of teachers unless signed by the President of the Association or Grievance Chairperson.
- **H.** All preparation, filing, presentation, or consideration of grievances shall be held at times other than when a teacher or a participating Association representative is to be at their assigned duty station unless mutually agreed upon.
- I. Any teacher who believes he/she has legitimate grounds for complaint of any nature, even though the complaint may not involve the interpretation and application of the express provisions of this Agreement, may present such complaint as a complaint and have the same processed in the same manner as a grievance under the grievance procedure with the Board level (Level Four) being the final level. It is expressly understood that such complaint is not a grievance, and may be remanded by the Board to the administrator for final consideration.

#### ARTICLE 11. STUDENT TEACHERS

- **A.** It is recognized by all parties that cooperation in the training of teachers is a professional responsibility; however, it is also recognized that to ensure the best possible situation for student teachers, the following rules will be adhered to:
  - 1. The supervising teacher, when possible shall be a tenured teacher, but in no case shall he/she be in the first semester of teaching in the District.
  - 2. No student teacher will be assigned without the consent of the teacher.
  - **3.** In general, not more than one student teacher shall be assigned to any one teacher but it is recognized that exceptions may arise where the Administration in its judgment may feel it desirable to assign more than one during a school year period.

**B.** Any monies received from the student teacher's school will be paid to the supervising teacher.

#### ARTICLE 12. DIVISIONAL CHAIRPERSON

- **A.** Divisional Chairpersons may be appointed each year by the Administration with the consent of the said teacher.
- **B.** Divisional Chairpersons may be tenured teachers but the position of Divisional Chairpersons will not be a tenured position.
- **C.** Divisional Chairpersons shall be available for not more than three meetings outside of the regular school year. At least two weeks advance notice of such meetings shall be given.
- **D.** Divisional Chairpersons will be responsible to the Senior High School Principal who will give to each Divisional Chairpersons prior to the acceptance of the position a list of duties of the position.

## ARTICLE 13. <u>MENTORS</u>

- A. For the first three (3) years of his/her employment in classroom teaching, a teacher shall be assigned by the school in which he/she teaches to one (1) or more master teachers, or college professors, or retired master teachers, who shall act as a mentor or mentors to the teacher. Bargaining unit members shall be considered for such assignments. Any bargaining unit member so selected may decline. Mentors shall assist the probationary employee to achieve the goals of the probationer's individual development plan.
- **B.** If a bargaining unit member is appointed as a mentor, the following provisions shall apply:
  - **1.** Bargaining unit mentors shall not participate in the supervision or evaluation of the probationer.
  - 2. Where possible, the bargaining unit mentor shall be assigned common preparation time.
  - **3.** Except for a matter involving discipline, bargaining unit members shall not be permitted to offer testimony about and aspect of the mentoring relationship in any grievance hearing involving the probationer.
  - 4. Each mentor shall be compensated at the rate of two percent (2%) of the base each year for their services, inclusive of training activities outside the work day or school year, not to exceed five (5) days beyond the contract year.

## ARTICLE 14. <u>SITE-BASED DECISION MAKING</u>

- **A.** Site-based decision making is a joint planning and problem solving process that seeks to improve the quality of working life and education.
- **B.** At each building, a Site-Based Committee made up of various representatives will be formed. Participation on such committee shall be voluntary.
- C. The decisions of the committee shall be implemented so long as those decisions do not exceed the budgetary limits established by the Board and do not affect the operations of other buildings or the District as a whole; do not violate Board policy, the collective bargaining agreement, or the law; and do not effect the decision of other Site-Based Committees and the recommendations of other school committees, such as school improvement or curriculum committees.
- **D.** If a dispute arises concerning the proper jurisdiction or the proper subject matter for committee decision, the dispute may be submitted to the grievance procedures of this contract.

## ARTICLE 15. ACADEMIC FREEDOM

Both the Board and the Association are pledged to work together to create and preserve an atmosphere which is free from censorship and artificial restraint, and in which academic freedom for teacher and student is protected, as established by applicable law.

Teachers shall work within their respective department or grade levels to choose appropriate materials and methodology consistent with the educational goals and objectives of the District.

### ARTICLE 16. PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT EDUCATIONAL LEAVE

Individuals who possess the Professional Education Certificate and/or Occupational Education Certificate, which must be renewed every five (5) years, may be granted unpaid leave of at least one (1), but not more than two (2), semesters for pursuing certificate renewal offerings from an authorized provider, provided such leave will not interfere with the staffing, curriculum, or educational needs of the District.

## ARTICLE 17. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

#### A. <u>Salary Payments</u>

- 1. Salary payments will be made every other Friday starting two weeks after the final pay for the previous school year. For most years this will be 26 pays; however in some years it will be 27 pays. Income tax deductions will be made from each paycheck; hospitalization, once a month. Tax sheltered annuity deductions and/or deductions for National Education Association mutual funds will be made from each paycheck unless otherwise requested.
- 2. If a teacher for any reason terminates his/ her service during the school year, a lump sum settlement of the difference between the amount already paid prior to such termination date under the regular contractual plan of 26 pay dates and the contract amount to date of termination and less dues to the Association for the then current year covered by any deduction authorization then in effect will be paid.
- **3.** Teachers wishing a lump sum payment of the balance of money due under the teacher's contract at the end of the school year must make application to the Superintendent by May 1st and such payment will be made on the next regular pay date after the close of school.
- **4.** If the Business Office is closed due to a scheduled holiday on a regular payday, paychecks will be available on the last day the Business Office is open prior to the holiday. The timelines outlined herein, however, shall not apply if normal operations are interrupted.
- 5. Teachers may, at their option, choose to receive their salary in twenty-one (21) equal bi-weekly installments from September through June. No unusual payroll deduction procedures will be made to cover periods when paychecks are not being received. The Business Office must be notified in writing by August 1 of each year by each teacher desiring this option. The Board has the interest in moving to two (2) wage payments per month for salaried and hourly employees. The Association agrees to move to this payroll schedule if the majority of other district employees move to that payroll schedule, and an adequate and mutually agreeable transition period occurs.
- **B.** All individual teacher contracts for the term covered by this Agreement shall be made expressly subject to the terms of this Agreement.
- C. Teachers acting as substitutes shall be paid at the rate of twenty dollars (\$20.00) for each class period taught.
- **D.** Teachers agree to notify the Board as soon as possible of any intent to terminate employment with the District. Pursuant to the Teachers' Tenure Act, failure to give written notice at least sixty (60)

days before September 1<sup>st</sup> of the ensuing school year may result in the forfeiture of the teacher's tenure rights.

- **E.** The Association will protect and save harmless the Board from any or all claims, demands, suits, and other forms of liability by reason of action taken or not taken by the Board or its designated agent for the purpose of complying with Article IV and its sub-paragraphs and Article V, Section C (2).
- **F**. The Board and the Association recognize the difficulty which may be encountered in recruiting qualified candidates to replace teachers who terminate employment with the District. The parties also recognize that the earlier recruitment efforts begin, the better the opportunity is to recruit qualified replacement candidates. Accordingly, the parties agree that the District will pay a One Thousand Dollar (\$1,000.00) stipend to any teacher who submits a letter of resignation for the ensuing school year on or before March 1st.

This stipend is not intended as a retirement incentive. Rather, the stipend is intended to encourage teachers to timely notify the District of their resignation plans so as to allow the District the best opportunity to recruit replacements.

The stipend will be paid in the last payroll in June in the manner for all employee wage payments. It is not intended that the stipend be included as earnings for retirement purposes. However, such payment will be subject to withholding for state and federal income taxes and payroll taxes.

#### ARTICLE 18. INSURANCE PROTECTION

The following insurance provision is provided:

- **A.** The insurance benefit year shall be July 1 June 30.
- **B.** For medical benefit plans beginning July 1, 2019, the District Employee Insurance Committee (which includes three (3) voting representatives from the Buchanan Education Association) shall identify the insurance carrier(s) and coverage plan(s) available to District employees and shall advise the Association of the insurance options at least fortyfive (45) days before the beginning of the medical benefit plan coverage year. The medical benefit plan identified by the District Employee Insurance Committee shall comply with the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act, the IRS Code, and the Publicly Funded Health Insurance Contribution Act, as amended, including any requirements necessary to avoid taxes, fees, or penalties.
- C. Subject to Public Act 54 of 2011, for those eligible bargaining unit members who opt for district funded insurance, the Board shall contribute the maximum hard-cap amount per eligible teacher allowed under PA 152 of 2011, as amended for the medical benefit plan coverage year then in effect. The Board shall first contribute, if a Health Savings Account (HSA) is elected, \$1,500 (\$750 for single insurance) bi-annually (January 1<sup>st</sup> and July 1<sup>st</sup>) into an individual Health Savings Account (HSA) for each member taking insurance. The Board shall then contribute to the teacher's medical benefit plan premiums in a combined

amount not to exceed the teacher's applicable PA 152 hard-cap in a combined amount not to exceed the teacher's applicable PA 152 hard-cap. The Board shall contribute an amount up to each eligible teacher's PA 152 hard-cap in pro-rated monthly premium payments, with the remainder, if any, in a lump sum HSA payment.

- **D.** Only teachers who are assigned to a full-time position as defined by the PPACA (currently working an average of 30 hours or more per week in the District) will be eligible for insurance benefits.
- **E.** For all teachers continuously employed, insurance benefits allowed shall not be terminated prior to September 1 for any teacher leaving the employment of the Board after June 1 of the same school year, so long as the teacher pays his/her portion of the medical benefit plan costs. The Board's contribution shall cease for any teacher whose employment ceases prior to June 1 or who goes on an unpaid leave of absence, other than a leave of absence under the Family and Medical Leave Act. Teachers shall be responsible for ensuring that the Board is reimbursed for any pro-rated portion of its HRA contributions attributable to that portion of the medical benefit plan coverage year remaining when the teacher leaves active employment with the District, except where the leave is related to the Family and Medical Leave Act.
- **F.** To the extent allowed by law, teachers may contribute to a health Flexible Spending Account or Section 125 plan in an amount authorized by law for the medical benefit plan coverage year, which shall be used to offset any deductibles, premium costs attributable to the teacher (if any), and any other items allowed by law and the Board's Section 125 plan.
- **G.** If, in any insurance benefit year, the monthly insurance premium exceeds the Board's contribution, any additional amounts shall be payroll deducted, or if wages are not available for payroll deduction, shall be paid directly by the teacher prior to the 1<sup>st</sup> of the month in which the premium payment is due.
- **H**. The Board will provide a Section 125 Plan that complies with the IRS Code.
- I. For those opting to take cash-in-lieu rather than the medical benefit plan, the Board shall pay three hundred ninety dollars (\$390.00) for 2021-2022; four hundred dollars (\$400.00) for 2022-2023; and four hundred ten dollars (\$410.00) for 2023-2024, minus all applicable taxes, deductions, and any payments made towards non-medical benefit insurance plans chosen or required by the teacher, in accordance with the District's Section 125 Plan.

#### Non-Health Benefits

A. The District shall pay the full premium costs of ancillary benefits (Dental/Vision, ADD, Life Insurance, and LTD) comparable to 2020-2021 coverages.

## ARTICLE 19. SALARY SCHEDULE CREDIT

- **A.** A step is equivalent to one year of effective or highly effective evaluations to the District after initial employment.
- **B.** Credit on the Buchanan salary schedules to a maximum acceptable to the Board may be allowed to those presenting satisfactory prior teaching experience. Credit on the salary schedule may be given at the discretion of the Board up to a maximum of five (5) years for related military, Peace Corps, business, or educational experience.
- C. Upon completing thirty (30) post-Baccalaureate college credits or a Master's degree, a teacher will progress two (2) steps on Salary Schedule A upon submission of official transcripts directly to the Superintendent's office. To be eligible for this salary advancement, individual coursework or a Master's degree program must be pre-approved in writing by the building principal, the courses must be aligned to current or anticipated teaching assignments or IDP goals, and provided by a quality and accredited university program. If the required documentation is received more than ten (10) days before the start of the semester, the salary schedule change will take effect on the first pay date after the beginning of that semester.

#### SCHEDULE A SALARIES

#### Negotiated Language for 2021-2024:

#### 2021-2022

- Grant a step on Schedule A for effective and highly effective teachers
- 3% raise on the base

#### 2022-2023

- Grant a step on Schedule A for effective and highly effective teachers
- 1% raise on the base with \$1,000 at Step 5

#### 2023-2024

- Grant a step on Schedule A for effective and highly effective teachers
- 1% raise on the base with \$1,000 at Step 15

STEP	\$1200	<b>INCREMENTS ONLY</b>
1	\$	39,560.00
2	\$	40,760.00
3	\$	41,960.00
4	\$	43,160.00
5	\$	44,360.00
6	\$	45,560.00
7	\$	46,760.00
8	\$	47,960.00
9	\$	49,160.00
10	\$	51,560.00
11	\$	52,760.00
12	\$	53,960.00
13	\$	55,160.00
14	\$	56,360.00
15	\$	57,560.00
16	\$	58,760.00
17	\$	59,960.00
18	\$	61,160.00
19	\$	62,360.00
20	\$	64,760.00
21	\$	65,960.00
22	\$	67,160.00
23	\$	68,360.00
24	\$	69,560.00
25	\$	70,760.00
26	\$	71,960.00
27	\$	73,160.00
28	\$	74,360.00
29	\$	74,360.00
30	\$	74,360.00

## 2021-22 Schedule A Salaries

- 1. Teachers shall not move to next step unless rated effective or highly effective on annual evaluation.
- 2. Increases are \$1,200.00 between steps
- 3. No Longevity

STEP	\$1200	INCREMENTS ONLY
1	\$	39,956.00
2	\$	41,156.00
3	\$	42,356.00
4	\$	43,556.00
5	\$	45,756.00
6	\$	46,956.00
7	\$	48,156.00
8	\$	49,356.00
9	\$	50,556.00
10	\$	52,956.00
11	\$	54,156.00
12	\$	55,356.00
13	\$	56,556.00
14	\$	57,756.00
15	\$	58,956.00
16	\$	60,156.00
17	\$	61,356.00
18	\$	62,556.00
19	\$	63,756.00
20	\$	66,156.00
21	\$	67,356.00
22	\$	68,556.00
23	\$	69,756.00
24	\$	70,956.00
25	\$	72,156.00
26	\$	73,356.00
27	\$	74,556.00
28	\$	75,756.00
29	\$	75,756.00
30	\$	75,756.00

## 2022-23 Schedule A Salaries

- 1. Teachers shall not move to next step unless rated effective or highly effective on annual evaluation.
- 2. Increases are \$1,200.00 between steps
- 3. No Longevity

STEP	\$1200	<b>INCREMENTS ONLY</b>
1	\$	40,356.00
2	\$	41,556.00
3	\$	42,756.00
4	\$	43,956.00
5	\$	46,156.00
6	\$	47,356.00
7	\$	48,556.00
8	\$	49,756.00
9	\$	50,956.00
10	\$	53,356.00
11	\$	54,556.00
12	\$	55,756.00
13	\$	56,956.00
14	\$	58,156.00
15	\$	60,356.00
16	\$	61,556.00
17	\$	62,756.00
18	\$	63,956.00
19	\$	65,156.00
20	\$	67,556.00
21	\$	68,756.00
22	\$	69,956.00
23	\$	71,156.00
24	\$	72,356.00
25	\$	73,556.00
26	\$	74,756.00
27	\$	75,956.00
28	\$	77,156.00
29	\$	77,156.00
30	\$	77,156.00

## 2023-24 Schedule A Salaries

- 1. Teachers shall not move to next step unless rated effective or highly effective on annual evaluation.
- 2. Increases are \$1,200.00 between steps
- 3. No Longevity

## SCHEDULE B CALENDARS

	Berrie	en C			arget Calen	Idar	SD=Student Da
<	Calendar	SD	TD	2021-3	2022 Day Type	Details	TD=Teacher Da
	July-2021			July			
	Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 1 2 3						
	4 5 6 7 8 9 10						
	11         12         13         14         15         16         17           18         19         20         21         22         23         24						
	25 26 27 28 29 30 31						
L							
	August-2021			August			
	Sun         Mon         Tue         Wed         Thu         Fri         Sat           1         2         3         4         5         6         7						
	8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	o	0	16-21		BCYF	
	22 23 24 25 26 27 28	0	2	25-26	No Students	25th = Breakfast, BEA Meeting, Staff Meeting and 1/2 day workday. 26th =	
I	29 30 31	2	2	30	First Day of School	Full PD	
I	September-2021			Septemb	ber	_	
	Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat	2	2	з	No School	Labor Day Weekend	
	5 6 7 8 9 10 11	4	4	6	No School	Labor Day	
	12 13 14 <b>15</b> 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25	5 5	5 5	22	PD Day	1/2 Day Student & 1/2 Day PD	
	26 27 28 <b>27</b> 30	4	4	_		Staff=Buchanan	
L							
	October-2021			October		-	
1000	Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 1 2	1	1				
	3 4 5 6 7 8 9	5	5			10.00.00.00.00.00	
	10 11 12 13 14 15 16	5 4	5	13 19	PD Day No Students	1/2 Day Student & 1/2 Day PD Staff=Buchanan Countywide Full PD	
	17         18         19         20         21         22         23           24         25         26         27         28         29         30	4	5 5	27	1/2 Day		
I	31	Ű.	ý	28	112 Day	1/2 day for Students with Afternoon and Evening PTC (8 hours) Full Day with Evening PTC (4 hrs)	
	November-2021			Novemb	er		
	Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 1 2 3 4 5 6	5	5	з	PD Day	1/2 Day Student & 1/2 Day PD	
	7 8 9 10 11 12 13	5	5			Staff=Buchanan	
	14 15 16 17 18 19 20	5	5				
	21 22 23 24 25 26 27	3	2.5	24	1/2 Day	(1/2 Day students & 1/2 Staff -Off PM) =Buchanan	
	28 29 30	2	2	25-26	No School	Thanksgiving	
	20 27 30	-	-	20 20	No ochodi	manogring	
L							
	December-2021			Decemb	er		
	Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat	3	з	ĩ	PD Day	1/2 Day Student & 1/2 Day PD	
	5 6 7 8 9 10 11	5	5			Staff=Buchanan	
	12 13 14 15 16 17 18	5	5	16	1/2 Day	Semester Final (Record's Day PM) - Staff may work from home in PM Semester Final (Record's Day RM)	
	19         20         21         22         23         24         25           26         27         28         29         30         31	0	0	17 20-31	1/2 Day No School	Semester Final (Record's Day PM) - Staff may work from home in PM Winter Break	
	26 27 28 29 30 31	0	J	20-01	AC CONCU	VINKEI DIEDR	
	January -2022			January			
	Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat						
	2 3 4 5 6 7 8	5	5	з	School Resumes		
	9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	5 4	5 5	17	No Students	MLK Day (Full PD Day)=Buchanan	
I	23 24 25 26 27 28 29	5	5		. In crossillo		
L	30 31	1	1				
	February -2022			Februar	¥		
	Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 1 2 3 4 5	4	4	2	PD Day	1/2 Day Student & 1/2 Day PD	
	6 7 8 9 10 11 12	4 5	4		. o oaj	Staff=Buchanan	
	13 14 15 16 17 18 19	5	5	16			
	20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28	4 1	4	21	No School	Presidents Day =Buchanan staff off	

180 183

# of Instructional Hours 1109.02 Required 1098 Hours 180 Student Days

	Berrien County Target Calendar 2021-2022											SD=Student Days TD=Teacher Days	180 183	# of Instructional Hours 1109.02
WK			Caler	dar			SD	TD	w.	Day Type	Details	i B Houdinor Buyo	100	
			March						March					
9	Sun	Mon	Tue We	d Thu 3	Fri 4	Sat 5	4	4						
10	6	7	8 9	10		12	5	5	9	PD Day	1/2 Day Student & 1/2 Day PD			
1	13	14	15 16		18	19	5	5	17	1/2 Day	Staff=Buchanan 1/2 day for Students with PTC in			
SB	20	21				26	0	0	21-25	No School	Afternoon and Evening = 8 hrs Spring Break			
2	27	28	29 30				4	4						
							Į.							
			April-:	0000					April					
	Sun	Mon	Tue We			Sat			o de un			a la companya da companya d		
				-	1	2	1	1						
З	з	4	5 6	7	8	9	5	5	6	PD Day	1/2 Day Student & 1/2 Day PD Staff=Buchanan			
4	10	11	12 13	14	15	16	5	4.5	15	1/2 Day	Good Friday (1/2 Day students & 1/2 Staff)-Off PM =Buchanan			
5	17	18	19 20	21	22	23	5	5	20		2			
6	24	25	26 27	28	29	30	5	5						
		-					I							
			May-	2022			Ĺ		May					
	Sun	Mon	Tue We			Sat								
7	1	2	3 4	5	6	7	5	5	4	PD Day	1/2 Day Student & 1/2 Day PD Staff=Buchanan			
8	8	9	10 11			14	5	5						
9 10	15 22	16 23	17 18 24 25		20 27	21 28	5 5	5 5	18					
11	29	30	31	20	27	20	1	1	30	No School	Memorial Day			
			-											
			June-	2022					June					
	Syn	Mon	Tue We	_		Sat			June					
			1	2	3	4	з	з						
12	5	6	7 8	9	10	11	3	З	7	1/2 Day	Semester Final (Record's Day PM)			
	12 19	13 20		16 23	17	18 25	0	0	8	1/2 Day	Semester Final (Record's Day PM)			
	26		28 29		24	2								
		- 2221 	100 100	1.422										

Required 1098 Hours 180 Student Days

	Draft- 2022-	2023	- (subje	Target Cale	alendar reopener)	SD=Student Days TD=Teacher Days	180 183	# of Instructional Hours 1124.5	Required 1098 Hours 180 Student Days
WH	Calendar July-2022	SD TO	July	Day Туре	Details				
	Sun         Mon         Tue         Wed         Thu         Fri         Sat           3         4         5         6         7         8         9           10         11         12         13         14         15         16           17         18         19         20         21         22         23           24         25         26         27         28         29         30           31								
	August-2022 Sun Man Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat		August		_				
	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13								
	14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27	0 0		No Students	BCYF 24th = Breakfast, BEA Meeting, Staff Meeting and 1/2 day workday. 25th =				
1	26 29 30 31	3 3		FirstDay of School	Full PD				
				1					
	September-2022	1 1	Septem 2	No School	Labor Dav Monkood				
2 3	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	4 4 5 5	5	No School	Labor Day Weekend Labor Day				
4	18 19 20 21 22 23 24	5 5	21	PD Day 1/2 Day	1/2 Day Student & 1/2 Day PD Staff=Buchanan				
5	25 26 27 28 29 30	5 5							
	October-2022 Sun Man Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat		Octobe	ř					
6	2 3 4 5 6 7 8	5 5							
7	9 10 11 12 13 14 15	55		PD Day	1/2 Day Student & 1/2 Day PD Staff=Buchanan				
8	16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29	4 5 5 5		No Students	Countywide Full PD 1/2 day for Students with Afternoon and Evening PTC (8				
-19	23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31	1 1	27	nz baj	hours) Full Day with Evening PTC (4 hrs)				
	November-2022		Novem	ber					
2	Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 1 2 3 4 5	4 4	2	PD Day	1/2 Day Student & 1/2 Day PD Staff=Buchanan				
3 4	6 7 8 <mark>9</mark> 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	5 5 5 5			Star-Education				
5	20 21 22 23 24 25 26	3 2.5	5 23	1/2 Day	(1/2 Day students & 1/2 Staff -Off PM) =Buchanan				
6	27 28 29 30	3 3	24-25	No School	Thanksgiving				
	December-2022 Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat		Decem	ber					
7	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	2 2 5 5		PD Day					
8	11 12 13 14 15 16 17	5 5		1/2 Day	Semester Final (Record's Day PM) - Staff may work from home in PM Semester Final (Record's Day PM)				
9 WE	18 19 20 <mark>21 22 23</mark> 24 3 25 <mark>26 27 28 29 30</mark> 31	5 5 0 0		1/2 Day No School	- Staff may work from home in PM Winter Break				
			_						
	January-2023 Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat		Januar						
WE 1 2	1         2         3         4         5         6         7           8         9         10         11         12         13         14           15         16         17         18         19         20         21	0 0 5 5 4 5	9	No School School Resumes No Students	Winter Break MLK (PD Day)				
2 3 4	13 18 17 18 17 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31	5 5 2 2		NO OBJECTIO	(in the constraints)				
	February-2023 Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat		Februa	Ŋ					
5	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 <mark>8</mark> 9 10 11	3 3 5 5		PD Day	1/2 Day Student & 1/2 Day PD Staff=Buchanan				
6 7	12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25	5 5 4 4		No School	Presidents Day (PD Day)				
8	26 27 28	2 2		-					

			D	rat	ft-						Target Caler	
ĸ				alenc			_	SD	TD	(subject	Day Type	Details
			Mar	ch-:	2023	3		ĺ		March		
S	un	Mon	Tue	Wed		Fri	Sat					
9	~		-	1	2	3	4	3	3 5	8	PD Dot	1/2 Day Student & 1/2 Day PD
	5	6	7	8	2	10	11	5			PD Day	Staff=Buchanan 1/2 day for Students with PTC in
	12	13	14	15	16	17	18	5	5	16	1/2 Day	Afternoon and Evening = 8 hrs
	19	20	21	22	23	24	25	0	0	20-24	No School	Spring Break
1	26	27	28	29	30	31		5	5			
			Ар	ril-2	023			[		April		
S	un	Mon	Tue	Wed	Thu	Fri					Transmission (	1/2 Day Student & 1/2 Day PD
				_			1			5	PD Day	Staff=Buchanan
2	2	з	4	5	6	7	8	5	4.5	7	1/2 Day	Good Friday (1/2 Day students & 1/2 Staff)-Off PM =Buchanan
	9	10	11	12	13	14	15	5	5			
8	16	17	18	19.	20	21	22	5	5			
	23	24	25	26	27	28	29	5	5			
3	30											
				iy-2						May		
	UN			Wed	-	Fri	Sat					1/2 Day Student & 1/2 Day PD
3		1	2	3	4	5	6	5	5	3	PD Day	Staff=Buchanan
	7	8	9		11	12	13	5	5			
	14	15	16	117	18	19	20	5 5	5 5			
1.0	21 28	22 29	23 30	24	25	26	27	2	2	29	No School	Memorial Day
Ĺ	20	27	30	91				Î	Ĩ	20	NO OCHOR	menorial bay
			Jun	ie-2	023	Ł		i		June		
S	un	Mon	Tue	Wed	Thu	Fri	Sat					
			_	_	1	2	3	2	2		10000	
22	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	3	3	6	1/2 Day	Semester Final (Record's Day PM)
	11	12 19	13	14	15	16	17	0	0	7	1/2 Day	Semester Final (Record's Day PM)
	18 25	19 26	20 27	21 28	22 29	23 30	24					
1	cU.	20	21	20	24	30						
-	-						-					

# of Instructional Hours =Student Days 180 1124.5 =Teacher Days 183

Il Hours Required 1098 Hours 180 Student Days

WK				alenc		201	2.3-	SD	TD	subject	Day Type	calendar repoener) Details	TD=Teacher D
WA			- 10 M	y-20	ante est			30	10	July	Day Type	Details	
	Sun	Mon		Wed		Fri	Sat					-	
	2	3	4	5	6	7	1 8						
	9	10	11	12	13	14	15						
	16	17	18	19	20	21	22						
	23	24	25	26	27	28	29						
	30	31											
		1	٩ug	ust-:	202	3				August		2	
	Sun	Mon	Tue 1	Wed 2	Thu 3	Fri 4	sat 5						
	6	7	8	9	10	11	12						
	13	14	15	16	17	18	19	0	0	14-18	BCYF	23rd= Breakfast, BEA Meeting, Staff	
	20	21	22	23	24	25	26	0	2	21-25	No Students	Meeting and 1/2 day workday. 24th =	
1	27	28	29	30	31			4	4	28	First Day of School	Full PD	
		Se	nte	mbe	vr-20	123		1		Septem	ber		
	Sun			Wed			Sat				01		
~				2		1	2	0	0	1	No School	Labor Day Weekend	
2 3	3 10	4	5 12	6 13	7 14	8 15	9 16	4 5	4 5	4	No School	Labor Day	
4	17	18	19	20	21	22	23	5	5	20	PD Day	1/2 Day Student & 1/2 Day PD Staff=Buchanan	
5	24	25	26	27	28	29	30	5	5			Stan-Duchanan	
		C	cto	ber	-202	23		1		Octobe	ŕ		
	Sun	Mon		Wed		Fri	Sat						
6	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	5	5		Direction (	1/2 Day Student & 1/2 Day PD	
7	8	9	10	11	12	13	14	5	5	11	PD Day	Staff=Buchanan	
8 1	15 22	16 23	17 24	18 25	19 26	20 27	21 28	4 5	5 5	17 25	No Students 1/2 Day	October Countywide PD 1/2 day for Students with Afternoon and	
2	29	30	31	20	20	21	20	2	2	26	trz bay	Evening PTC (8 hours) Full Day with Evening PTC (4 hrs)	
			100										
		No	NO.	nbe	. 20	122		1		Novemi	)er		
	Sun			Wed		Fri	Sat					-	
				1	2	3	4	3	3	1	PD Day	1/2 Day Student & 1/2 Day PD Staff=Buchanan	
3	5	6	7	8	9	10	11	5	5				
4 5	12 19	13 20	14 21	15 22	16 23	17 24	18 25	5 3	5 2.5	22	1/2 Day	(1/2 Day students & 1/2 Staff -Off PM)	
6	26	20 27	21	22	30	24	25	4	4	23-24	No School	=Buchanan Thanksgiving	
0	20	27	20	27									
	Sun	De Mon	_	mbe Wed	_	023 Fri	Sat			Decemb	Jer		2 -
						1	2	1	1				
7	з	4	5	6	7	8	9	5	5	6	PD day	1/2 Day Student & 1/2 Day PD Staff=Buchanan	
8	10	11	12	13	14	15	16	5	5	21	1/2 Day	Semester Final (Record's Day PM) - Staff may work from home in PM	
9	17	18	19	20	21	22	23	5	5	22	1/2 Day	Semester Final (Record's Day FM) - Staff may work from home in FM	81
WB	10000	25	26	27	28	29	30	0	0	25-29	No School	Winter Break	
	31						-						
		J	anu	ary	202	24				January	/	2	
18.000	Sun	Mon	_	Wed			sat		0		Ma Caba-I	Minter Brook	
WB 1	7	8	2	3	4	5 12	6 13	0 5	0 5	1-5 8	No School School Resumes	Winter Break	
2	14	15	16	17	18	19	20	4	5	15	No Students	MLK Day (PD Day)	
3	21	22	23	24	25	26	27	5	5	94			
4	28	29	30	31				3	3	31			
										No. of Concession, Name	50m		2
				Jary						Februar	У		
	Sun	Mon	Tue	Wed	Thu 1	Fri 2	Sat 3	2	2				
5	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	5	5	7	PD Day	1/2 Day Student & 1/2 Day PD Staff=Buchanan	
6	11	12	13	14	15	16	17	5	5				
7	18	19	20 27	21 28	22 29	23	24	4 4	4 4	19	No School	Presidents Day	

# of 1 180 183

# of Instructional Hours Required 1118 1098 Student Hours 180 Student Days

10         10         11         12         13         14         15         16         0         0         17.04%         Afternion and Evening = 8 hrs           SB         17         18         19         20         21         22         23         0         0         18-22         No School         Spring Break					a	1- 2	202	20-	201	4 (	subject	to change with	calendar repoener)
Sun         Non         Non <th>NK</th> <th></th> <th>_</th> <th>C</th> <th>alend</th> <th>ar</th> <th></th> <th></th> <th>SD</th> <th>TD</th> <th></th> <th>Day Type</th> <th>Details</th>	NK		_	C	alend	ar			SD	TD		Day Type	Details
Svn         Mori Tue         Wed Tue         Fri         Scd         Fri <t< th=""><th>1</th><th></th><th>3</th><th>Mar</th><th>ch-1</th><th>202/</th><th>r</th><th></th><th>1</th><th></th><th>March</th><th></th><th></th></t<>	1		3	Mar	ch-1	202/	r		1		March		
9       3       4       5       6       7       8       9       5       5       6       PD Day       1/2 Day Student & 1/2 Day PD Staff-Buchanan         10       1       1       12       14       15       16       5       5       12       12 Day for Staff-Buchanan       1/2 Day Student & 1/2 Day for Staff-Buchanan       1/2 Day for Staff-Buchanan       1/2 Day for Staff-Buchanan       1/2 Day for Staff-Buchanan       1/2 Day for Staff-Bucha		Sun				_		Sat					
3         3         3         4         5         6         7         8         7         6         7         8         7         6         7         8         7         6         7         6         7         6         7         6         7         6         7         8         7         6         7         6         7         8         7         0         10         11         12         13         14         15         16         5         5         12         Day         13         14         15         16         5         5         12         Day         13         14         15         15         6         7         8<				_	_		1	2	1	1			
No         I <thi< th="">         I         <thi< th=""> <thi< th=""></thi<></thi<></thi<>	9	з	4	5	6	7	8	9	5	5	6	PD Day	1/2 Day Student & 1/2 Day PD Staff=Buchanan
SEB         17         18         19         00         10         12         13         14         19         00         10         18-22         No         School         Spring Fragk         Sprin	10	10	11	12	13	14	15	16	5	5		1/2 Day	1/2 day for Students with PTC in Afternoon and Evening = 8 brs
April         23         April         203         April         Staffy-Off PM =Buchanan           2         1         2         3         4         5         6         5         5           2         1         2         3         4         5         6         5         5           2         1         2         3         4         5         6         5         5           2         7         8         9         10         11         12         15         5           2         2         2         3         4         5         6         5         5           2         1         1         1         18         19         20         5         5           2         2         2         2         2         2         2         2         2           7         5         6         7         8         9         10         11         5         5         5           2         2         2         2         2         2         2         2         2           7         5         6         7         8         9	SB	17	18	19	20	21	22	23	0	0	18-22	No School	
31         April 2024         April 2024         Sun Mon Tve Wed Thu       Fri       Soft         3       7       8       9       10       11       12       5       5         5       6       7       8       9       10       11       12       5       5         5       6       7       8       9       10       11       20       5       5         6       7       8       9       10       11       20       5       5         6       7       8       9       10       11       5       5         7       5       6       7       8       9       10       11       5       5         9       10       11       5       5       5       5       7       8       9       10       11       5       5       5         9       10       11       5       5       5       5       7       8       9       10       11       5       5       5       7       8       7       4       4       2       2       2       2 <td>1</td> <td>24</td> <td>25</td> <td>26</td> <td>27</td> <td>28</td> <td>29</td> <td>30</td> <td>5</td> <td>4.5</td> <td>29</td> <td>1/2 Day</td> <td>Good Friday (1/2 Day students &amp; 1/2</td>	1	24	25	26	27	28	29	30	5	4.5	29	1/2 Day	Good Friday (1/2 Day students & 1/2
Sun Mon Tue         Wed The         Wed The         With         Sate         Sate <td></td> <td>31</td> <td></td> <td>Starr-Oli Fili -Bucharlan</td>		31											Starr-Oli Fili -Bucharlan
Sun Mon Tue         Wed The         Wed The         With         Sate         Sate <td></td>													
2       1       2       3       4       5       6       5       7       8       9       10       11       5       5       5       2       2       2       1       10       10       10       10       10       10       10       10       10       10       10       10       10       10       10       10       10       10											April		
Image: 1       Image: 2       Image: 3       Image: 4       Image: 5       Image: 6       Image: 7       Image: 6       Image: 7       Image: 7 <thimage: 7<="" th="">       Image: 7       <thi< td=""><td></td><td>Sun</td><td>Mon</td><td>Tue</td><td>Wed</td><td>Thu</td><td>Fri</td><td>sat</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>-</td><td>100 0 1-11 100- 00</td></thi<></thimage:>		Sun	Mon	Tue	Wed	Thu	Fri	sat				-	100 0 1-11 100- 00
4       14       15       16       17       18       19       20       5       5         5       1       12       23       24       25       26       27       2       2       2       2         7       5       6       7       8       9       10       11       5       5       5       5         8       12       13       14       15       16       17       18       5       5       5         12       13       14       15       16       17       18       5       5       5       5         19       20       21       22       23       4       5 <td< td=""><td>2</td><td></td><td>1</td><td>2</td><td>3</td><td>4</td><td>5</td><td>6</td><td>5</td><td>5</td><td>3</td><td>PD Day</td><td>1/2 Day Student &amp; 1/2 Day PD Staff=Buchanan</td></td<>	2		1	2	3	4	5	6	5	5	3	PD Day	1/2 Day Student & 1/2 Day PD Staff=Buchanan
5     21     22     23     24     25     26     27     5     5     5       5     6     7     8     9     10     11     5     5     5       7     5     6     7     8     9     10     11     5     5       9     10     11     5     5     5     22       10     12     23     34     4     5     5       10     2     2     2     2     2       10     12     14     15     16     17     18     5       10     12     23     34     34     34     34     34     34       11     2     3     4     15     5     5       11     2     3     4     5     6     7		200							10000				
6       28       29       30       2       3       4       1/2       Day       Memorial Day       1/2       Day       2       2       2       2       2       2       2       2       2 <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>11000</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>									11000				
May         May           5         1         2         3         4         3         3         1         PD day         1/2 Day Student & 1/2 Day PD           7         5         7         8         9         10         11         5         5         8           7         5         7         8         9         10         11         5         5         8           9         12         12         12         12         12         24         25         5         5         22           10         26         27         28         29         30         31         4         4         4         2         7         No School         Memorial Day           June-2024         June           Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu         11         5         5         22         27         No School         Memorial Day         June           11         2         3         4         5         7         8         3         3         4         1/2 Day         Serverser Final (Woords Day					24	25	26	2)					
Sun Mon Tue         Wed Thy         Fin         Sat           1         2         3         4         3         3         1         PD day         1/2 Day Student & 1/2 Day PD           7         5         6         7         8         9         10         11         5         5           9         12         14         15         16         17         18         5         5           9         19         20         21         22         23         24         25         5         5           9         19         20         21         22         3         3         3         4         4         4           Vertext 10         11         5         5         5         22         27         No School         Memorial Day           Vertext 10         11         2         3         4         1/2 Day         Servestar Final (Browerts Day	0	20	2)	50					-	2			
Sun Mon Tue         Wed Thy         Fin         Sat           1         2         3         4         3         3         1         PD day         1/2 Day Student & 1/2 Day PD           7         5         6         7         8         9         10         11         5         5           9         12         14         15         16         17         18         5         5           9         19         20         21         22         23         24         25         5         5           9         19         20         21         22         3         3         3         4         4         4           Vertext 10         11         5         5         5         22         27         No School         Memorial Day           Vertext 10         11         2         3         4         1/2 Day         Servestar Final (Browerts Day													
Image: Normal back in the state in				Mc	iy-2(	024					May		_
Image: 1     Image: 2     Image: 3     Image		Sun	Mon	Tue	Wed	Thu	Fri	Sat					1/2 Day Chudeat 9, 100 Day 000
10       13       14       15       16       17       16       5       5         9       19       20       21       22       23       24       25       5       5       22         10       26       27       28       29       30       31       4       4       27       No School       Memorial Day         June-2024         Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu       Fri       5       1       1         11       2       3       4       5       3       3       4       11/2 Day       Semester Final (Finourity Day)					1	2	3	4	3	3		PD day	
9         19         20         21         22         23         24         25         5         5         22           10         26         27         28         29         30         31         5         5         5         22           June-2024           sun Mon Tve Wed Thu En Sort         1         1         2         3         4         5         6         7         8         3         3         4         1/2 Day         Servester Final (Woords Day)	Sec. 1	- C			- C				1000		8		
Image: Sum Mon Tue Wed Thu         Fill Soft         Image: Sum Mon Tue Wed Thu	000	1000			20.00								
June-2024         June           Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat         1           11         2         3         4         5         4         1/2 Day         Servester Final (Records Day)		100	-					25	2.25		0.0	No School	Memorial Day
Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat         1           1         1           2         3         4         1/2 Day         Semester Final (Records Day	10	20	20	20	(67)		01					no octobr	
Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat         1           1         1           2         3         4         1/2 Day         Semester Final (Records Day													
11 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 3 3 4 1/2 Day Semester Final (Record's Day				Jun	ie-20	024					June		
11 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 3 3 4 1/2 Day Semester Final (Record's Day	-	Sun	Mon	Tue	Wed	Thu	Fri						
ourreader entrong address of a boy	44	~	2	×	2	1	7			2	4	1/2 Day	
Settester Prinal (Records Day	-0								10.000				
16 17 18 19 20 21 22											Ť	way	Joemester ninan (Record's Day PM)
23 24 25 26 27 28 29													

ſ	
	SD=Student Days
	TD=Teacher Days

180 183

# of Instructional Hours Required 1118 1098 Student Hours 180 Student Days

#### ARTICLE 20. SEVERABILITY/EMERGENCY FINANCIAL MANAGER

If any provisions of the Agreement or any application of the Agreement to any employee shall be found contrary to law, then such provision or application shall be deemed null and void, but all other provisions or applications shall continue in full force and effect; furthermore, the provisions of such law shall supersede, to the extent of the conflict, the provisions of this Agreement and govern the relation of the parties.

An emergency financial manager appointed under the Local Government and School District Accountability Act, MCL 141.1501 *et seq.* may reject, modify, or terminate this Agreement as provided by law.

#### ARTICLE 21. DURATION OF AGREEMENT

**A.** This Agreement shall be effective as of July 1, 2021 and shall continue in effect until June 30, 2024. This Agreement shall not be extended orally, and it is expressly understood that it shall expire on the date indicated.

## SCHEDULE C Extracurricular Salary Classification Proposal

No longer tied to Teacher Salary Scale.

Steps granted annually on Extra-curricular Schedule unless otherwise negotiated.

<u>Class 1</u> Basketball – Boys Varsity Basketball – Girls Varsity Football – Varsity Volleyball	<u>Class 5</u> Baseball - JV Softball - JV Volleyball – JV Wrestling – Varsity Assistant Track – Varsity Assistant
Class 2Baseball – VarsitySoftball - VarsitySoccer – Boys VarsitySoccer – Girls VarsityTrack – Boys VarsityTrack – Girls VarsityWrestling – Varsity*Band*Drama	Class 6 Basketball – Girls Freshman Soccer – Boys JV Soccer – Girls JV Sideline Cheer - Varsity *HS Yearbook *HS Student Council Advisor
<u>Class 3</u> Competition Cheer – Varsity Cross County – Varsity Golf – Boys Varsity Tennis – Boys Varsity Tennis – Girls Varsity	<u>Class 7</u> Middle School Coaches *Close-up (paid when trip is during spring break) *Senior Class Advisor *Junior Class Advisor
<u>Class 4</u> Basketball – Boys JV/Varsity Assistant Basketball – Girls JV/Varsity Assistant Football – Varsity Assistant #1 Football – Varsity Assistant #2 Football – JV/Varsity Assistant	Class 8 Middle School Chorus *Approved Club/Activity (HS/MS/Elementary)
*These positions do not need the MHSSA Cert * MHSSA certification classes that are required	ification to move on the salary scale. I to move up a step will be paid for by administration.

#### SCHEDULE C Extracurricular Salary Classification Proposal *(Continued)* No longer tied to Teacher Salary Scale. Steps granted annually on Extra-curricular Schedule unless otherwise negotiated.

Years Exp.	Class 1	Class 2	Class 3	Class 4	Class 5	Class 6	Class 7	Class 8
1-2 Steps MHSSA Certification not required	\$6,000	\$4000	\$3500	\$2750	\$2250	\$2000	\$1500	\$1000
3-4 Steps + Level 1 & 2 MHSAA Certification)	\$6500	\$4375	\$3850	\$3075	\$2550	\$2250	\$1750	\$1200
5-6 Steps + Level 3 MHSAA Certification	\$7000	\$4750	\$4200	\$3400	\$2850	\$2500	\$2000	\$1400
7-8 Steps + Level 4 MHSAA Certification	\$7500	\$5125	\$4550	\$3725	\$3150	\$2750	\$2250	\$1600
9 + Steps + Level 5 MHSAA Certification	\$8000	\$5500	\$4900	\$4050	\$3450	\$3000	\$2500	\$1800

#### **Elementary Positions**

Outdoor Education Participation –\$50.00 per session (Paid only in event the day is sufficiently extended)

Outdoor Education Coordinator - \$200.00 (No more than two)

#### **Other**

Athletic Event Duty	\$20.00 for Varsity Sports
	\$15.00 for Junior Varsity and Middle School Sports
Divisional Chair	\$ 50.00 per teacher each division
9 <sup>th</sup> Grade sponsor	\$200.00
10 <sup>th</sup> Grade Sponsor	\$200.00

**Schedule C:** By June 15<sup>th</sup> of each year, the Superintendent and Leadership Team (including one principal for each building and Athletic Director) shall meet with the Association Team (President or designee and one representative from each building) to confirm the extracurricular positions budgeted and assigned for the ensuing fiscal/academic year.

Decisions made by the committee neither open the Master Agreement, nor diminish the Board's Management Rights in Article 2. These projections are subject to change based on the number of seasonal participants.

## SCHEDULE D UNUSED SICK DAYS

Upon retirement (as defined by the Michigan Public School Employees Retirement Board) from the teaching profession and the Buchanan Community School District, any teacher who has been a full-time employee of the Buchanan School District for fifteen (15) or more consecutive years and has accumulated sick leave days in excess of eighty (80) days shall receive payment for those days in excess of eighty (80), but not more than 170 days, at the daily rate of fifty (50) percent of the daily pay of a substitute teacher at the time of said teacher's retirement.



#### Letter of Agreement Between Buchanan-5C Education Association, MEA/NEA and the Buchanan Community Schools Board of Education

The Buchanan -5C Education Association, MEA/NEA ("Association") and the Buchanan Community Schools Board of Education ("Board") agree to update the following contract language as it applies to the student day under Article 5, Section A of the parties' collective bargaining agreement.

1. Article 5, Section A, states: "The normal student day shall be as follows:

<u>Moccasin</u>: 8:50am - 3:45pm <u>Ottawa</u>: 8:45am - 3:40pm <u>Middle School</u>: 7:30am - 2:25pm High School: 7:40am - 2:40 pm"

2. Effective for the 2021-2022 school year, the parties agree to the following student day schedule:

Moccasin Elementary

Normal Hours: 8:45 a.m.-3:48 p.m. Early Release Wednesdays ("Wacky Wednesday"): 8:45 a.m.-3:15 p.m. Half-Days: 8:45 a.m.-12:10 p.m.

Ottawa Elementary

Normal Hours: 8:40 a.m.-3:43 p.m. Early Release Wednesday ("Wacky Wednesday"): 8:40 a.m.-3:10 p.m. Half-Days: 8:40 a.m.-12:05 p.m.

Buchanan Middle School

Normal Hours: 7:30 a.m.-2:25 p.m. Early Release Wednesdays ("Wacky Wednesday"): 7:30 a.m.-1:55 p.m. Half-Days: 7:30 a.m.-10:50 a.m.

<u>Buchanan High School</u>

Normal Hours: 7:40 a.m.- 2:40 p.m. Early Release Wednesdays ("Wacky Wednesday"): 7:40 a.m.-2:07 p.m. Half-Days: 7:40 a.m.-11:00 a.m.

3. The parties acknowledge that this Agreement is not precedential and does not in any way affect the following agreed-on language in Article 5, A.: "As determined by the Board's sole discretion, the above student school days start and end times may be adjusted to meet any changes in state requirements and/or for transportation schedules."

Patricia Robinson Superintendent, Buchanan Community Schools

7/14/21\_\_\_\_



#### Letter of Agreement Between Buchanan-5C Education Association, MEA/NEA and the Buchanan Community Schools Board of Education

The Buchanan -5C Education Association, MEA/NEA ("Association") and the Buchanan Community Schools Board of Education ("Board") agree to update the following 2021-2022 calendar changes as a response to the needs of the district.

#### **Calendar Changes:**

November 24, 2021- No school for students and staff

December 1, 2021 - Full day of school students and staff

March 9, 2022 - Full day of school for students and staff

February 18, 2022 - No school for students and staff

March 18, 2022- No school for students and staff

180 student days; 180 staff days

ilmm

Buchanan 5 Education Association

Superintendent, Buchanan Community Schools

11/12/2021 Date